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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURY" I ~8 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA 8rIc 

ATLANTA DIVISION 

) 
Steven Bivens, on behalf of himself ) 
and all persons similarly situated, ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

) CIVIL ACTION FILE 
v. ) 

. Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc., 
) 
) 
) 

NO. .

1: 17-CV-0760 
Defendant. ) 

------------------------~) 

_CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff Steven Bivens, by and through his attorney of record, files this 

Complaint on behalf of himself and all persons similarly situated within the United 

States and hereby alleges as follows: 

PARTIES 

1. 

Plaintiff Steven Bivens ("Mr. Bivens") is a resident of the State of Georgia. 

He. currently resides at 651 Simmons Mine Circle, Sugar Hill, Georgia 30518. 

2. 

Defendant Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc. ("SPS") is a Utah corporation 
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authorized to do business in the State of Georgia and is currently in good standing. 

SPS may be served through its registered agent, Corporation Service Company, 40 

Technology Parkway South, Suite 300, Norcross, GA 30092. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. 

Jurisdiction and venue are proper over the parties as pled in this Complaint. 

This Court has federal question jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' RESPA claim. Venue 

is proper in this district as Mr. Bivens resides in this district, the violation occurred 

here and SPS does business here. 

FA.CTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

4. 

Mr. Bivens is the maker of promissory notes and the grantor of security 

deeds dated August 2, 2006, for both a first and a second loan on his home at 651 

Simmons Mine Circle, Sugar Hill, Georgia 305168. The lender for each of these 

loans was Mortgage Lenders Network, USA, Inc. ("MLN"). These loans are both 

federally related mortgage loans. 

5. 

Defendant SPS is a servicer of federally related mortgage loans and has 

represented itself to Mr. Bivens as the current servicer of the first loan on Mr. 
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Bivens' home. 

6. 

Mr. Bivens faxed a Qualified Written Request (QWR) to SPS on June 30, 

2016, to the designated fax number, 801-270-7856, that asked for information 

related to the servicing of his account. See Exhibit A. 

7. 

SPS's response to this request for information did not provide any of the 

requested information - instead it stated: "Due to the current litigation, SPS 

believes that it would be more appropriate to refrain from providing a detailed 

response to you at this time ... and consider this matter closed." See Exhibit B. 

This is a violation of 12 U.S.C. § 2605. 

8. 

Mr. Bivens faxed another request for this same information to SPS at the 

same number on August 3,2017, from Office Depot. See Exhibit C. 

9. 

SPS's response to the August 3rd request provided some of the information 

requested, but failed to provide other requested information, so this response also 

violated 12 U.S.C. § 2605. See Exhibit D. 
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10. 

Mr. Bivens has suffered actual damages that include: the cost of travel to 

Office Depot and the cost of faxing the August 3rd QWR from Office Depot. 

11. 

SPS has also failed to adequately respond to QWRs from Mr. Bivens in 

violation of 12 U.S.C. § 2605 that were sent on March 26, 2015, Feb. 4, 2016, 

April 20, 2016 and Oct. 13,2016. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

12. 

Class Plaintiff brings this action both individually and on behalf of all 

persons whose Qualified Written Requests to SPS were not substantively 

responded to by SPS where SPS refused to substantively respond to the disputes 

and requests for information based on "litigation" since March 2, 2014 (the 

"Class"). 

13. 

The Class of persons described above is so numerous that joinder of all 

members is impracticable. Important questions of law and fact exist which are 

common to the entire Class and predominate over any questions that may affect 

individual Class Members in that Defendant has acted on grounds generally 
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applicable to the entire Class. 

14. 

All questions as to the actions attributable to Defendant herein are similarly 

common. A determination of liability for such conduct will also be applicable to 

all members of the Class. 

15. 

The claims of the Class representative, Plaintiff Steven Bivens, are typical of 

the claims of the Class in that all Plaintiffs are suing for damages under 12 U.S.C. 

§ 2605( e) and (t). The Class violations are all violations of the same federal law 

and SPS has the same illegal practice nationwide, so common questions of law and 

fact will predominate over questions affecting only individual members. A 

determination of a violation will be applicable to all members of the Class. Class 

certification will also obviate the need for duplicative litigation. 

16. 

Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the 

entire Class. Plaintiff has retained counsel competent and experienced in the 

prosecution of class action litigation. Plaintiff has no interests that are contrary to 

or in conflict with those of the Class he seeks to represent. 
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17. 


Class actions are specifically provided for by 12 U.S.C. § 2605, and this 

action is superior to all other available methods for fair and efficient adjudication 

of this controversy. There is no difficulty to be encountered in the management of 

this action that would preclude its maintenance as a class action. 

18. 

The prosecution of separate actions by individual Class Members would 

create a risk of inconsistent and varying adjudications concerning the subject of 

this action, which adjudications could establish incompatible standards for 

Defendant under the laws alleged herein. A class action is superior to other 

available methods for fairly and efficiently adjudicating this controversy. 

19. 

Plaintiff intends to send notice to all members of the Class as required by 

Fed. R. Civ. P. 23. The names and addresses of the Class are available from 

Defendant's records. 

REQUEST FOR CLASS RELIEF 

VIOLATIONS OF 12 U.S.C. § 2605 


20. 


Plaintiffs incorporated by reference the allegations from paragraphs 1-19 

as if set forth verbatim herein. 
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2l. 

The Real Estate Settlement Practices Act ("RESPA"), codified at 12 U.S.C. 

§ 2605( e), governs the duty of loan servicers to respond to borrower inquiries. 

22. 

Servicers are required to provide substantive responses to QWRs. 

Defendant has failed to comply with this requirement because it has refused to 

substantively respond to Plaintiffs' QWRs, as required in 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e), 

based on an excuse of"litigation." 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

23. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the Class, prays: 

1. For an award of actual and statutory damages, 

2. For an award of all reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred by 

Plaintiffs, and 

3. For such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and 

equitable. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

24. 

Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff and 
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the Class demand a trial by jury. 

Submitted this 2nd day ofMarch, 2017 . 

BY: Wayne Charles, P.C. 

Wayne Charles 
Georgia State Bar No. 515244 

WAYNE CHARLES, PC 
395 Highgrove Dr. 
Fayetteville, GA 30215 
(770) 241-8936 
(770) 460-0412 (fax) 

Attorney for named Plaintiff and the 
Class 
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL RULE 5.1 

I hereby certify that I prepared the foregoing in Times New Roman, 14-point 

font, as approved by Local Rule 5.1. 

Wayne Charles 
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jS; ijeM6 

To: Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc. (801-270-7856) 

From: Steve Bivens 

Re: 	Account Number 013651765, 651 Simmons Mine Circle, Sugar Hill. GA 30518 

In a letter I sent you on ApriL 2016, I asked again for information., and you sent some 
information, but did not send some ofthe requested information. I have detailed the 
missing information below. 

You still have not completely responded to the question below (especially you have not 
provided the documents asked for), so I am asking for the rest ofthe information again: 

Please tell me who are the different servicers, subservicers and masterservicer~ who 
currently are involved with this loan and provide c!ocuments showing their authorit;y 
and responsibilities regarding this loan and when their involvement started. 

• 	 Please list all the charges that comprise the $9,999.99 charge in the account history, the 
date of the charge and explain the reason for each of the charges. Also please Ust all the 
charges that comprise the $863.07 charge in the account history, the date ofthe charge and 
explain the reason for each ofthe charges. 

Please describe all ofthe attempts you have made to obtain the account history for the time 
before January 16, 2007, and when you made each ofthose attempts. 

You refused to send me a copy ofthe documents in the custodial file. even though you, the 
servicerl ,took them from the custodial bank and have them in your possession. I am again 
requ~gthatbdbrmatioa 

You have also refused to send me any documents showing when the current holder of the 
note became the current holder ofthe note. I am again requesting that information. 

I am asking again for the r1!st of the trust agreement that you sent the front page from, 
espedally the part that shows whether my loan is in that trust 

Please explai~ what "title cure costs" are and why they were charged to my account 

Finally, please send me copies of a1l ofthe property inspection reports. 

Thank you, 

$M~· 
Steve Bivens 

t 
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SPSf 
July 29. 2016 

Steve Bivens 
651 Simmons Mine Circle 
Sugar Hill. GA 30518 

Account Number: 0013651765 
Property Add .....: 651 Simmons Mine Circle 

Sugar Hill, GA30518 

Dear Steve Bivens, 

Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc. (SPS); the mortgage servicer on the above referenced account, has 
received your inquiry dated June 30 .• 2016. which we received on June 30, 2016. 

Ttleissues presented in your fetter are part of an ongoing litigation. SPS is aware of the issuet presented 
in your letter and would like to work wlthyou to reach a resolution. Due to the current Jitigation. SPS 
befieves that it would be mont appropriate to refrain from providing a detailed. response. to you at this 
time. We encourage you to continue working with our legal counsel to determine the available resolution 
options. 

We appreciate the opportunity toeddress the. issue(s) noted in your inquiry and consider this matter 
resolved. Should you have any further quesUons,please contact me toll-free at 866-878-5178, extension 
50256 between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, Eastern Time. 

Sincerely, 

David ·Mauro 
Customer Advocate 

Estacarta contieoe infonnaci6n importante concemiente a sus derechos. Por favor, traduzca esta carta. 
Nuestrosrepresentantes bilingOes estin a su disposiciOn pars contestar cualquier pregunta. Uamennos 

. alnUmera 800-831-0118 y selecciolieJmarque Is opcl6n 2 

THIS COIIMUNICATIONFROII ADEBT COLLECTOR IS AN ATTEMPT TO COLLECT A DEBT AND ANY INFORMATION 

OBTAlNEOWILL BE USED FOR THAT PURPOSE 


MiNNE80TA - THIS COLLECTION AGENCY 18 LICENSED BY THE MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

NEW YORKClrY - COLLECTION AGENcy licENSE #1170514 


... 

II..
 I .~(I 


Case 1:17-cv-00760-ODE-WEJ   Document 1-2   Filed 03/02/17   Page 2 of 2



Exhibit C 


Case 1:17-cv-00760-ODE-WEJ   Document 1-3   Filed 03/02/17   Page 1 of 5



• 

............ DBPOT. 

complimentary fax cover sheet 

number of pages InclUding cover._ :..? t,r~ 
attention to: _____________ date: --=~::....L.~!;..;:uv::::;.....:~wL.I_LL....L....I.IiI/£d"'-------

ftom: _____________________~---
company: S f? ~ 
p~ne~ _______________________ oompa~:------------------------

fax #: 80I ,;2 7() 2£.5t: senders phone #; tt 73 57C "(7/ 
commenm: ____________________________________________________ 

By sending this fax at Offtca Depot. Inc., the I8nCIar agraes not to use this fax to: (I) transmit material whose nnsmlasion Is 
unlawI'uI, hanlllillg, 1I:MJIouI, abue1wt, threatening, harmful, wlgar. obScene, pornographic orotherwII& objecIIonable; (II) 
tn8t8 • faIIe identity, or otharwI8e.aUarnpt to mislead others 88 to the identity t:1 the ...or the origin ofIhls fax; (III) poS . 
or IrInsmit any material that may infringe the copyright, trade saaret. or other rights of any third party; (IV) violate any fedenII, 
etata or local raw In the location, or tv) conduct acIMtIes related to gambling, aweepatakas, ral'lles.1ctterIes. contasta, ponzI 
achemeI or the Rke. 

Pleat note that 0IiIce Depot. Inc., d088 not r8'IIew the contents t:1 any fax sent uaing Its services. The sender of this fax 
hnby agrees to Indemnify 0IiIce cepot Inc., to the 1U1Iast extentof the law and for any and aD claims, suits, ordamages 
aiIIing out or In comacIion with Ihe request to sand, or sanding Ihl. fax. 

local first page long distance first page international first page 

$1.59 833071 $2.19 833081 $7.99 833191 

long distance 

local additional page additional page inbHnationaladdWonalpage 

JIIIBIIIIII 

$1.49 456687 $1.99 833091 $3.99 833201 

depotlrnax store 6561 
1300 Marketplace Blvd 
Cumming. GA 30041 
p: 770.844.5853 1: nO.844.5854 
ods06561 cpc@offlcedepot.com 

-_............-. 
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August 3, 2016 


To: Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc. (801-27()"7856) 


From: Steve Bivens 


. ~: A.ccountNumber0136S176S,6S1 SimmonsMineCircl~SugarHill,GA 30S18 

I received your response (dated July 29, 2016) to my Qualified Written Request, but 
you did not provide any of the information I asked for. NeIther did your attorneys. Yet;, you 
stated: 'We appreciate the opportunity to address the lssue(s) noted in your inquiry and 
consider this matter dosed." 

Plainly, since you did not provide the information, this matter is not dosed, whether 
you "consider" it so or not 

So, I am attaching that letter to this one, and I am again requesting the information 
in that letter. 

Thank you, 

Steve Bivens 
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344cai6 

To: Select Portfolio Servlcing, Inc. (801-Z1()..1BS6) 

I ~ From: Steve Bivens 
i 

Be: Account Number 013651165, 651 SimmODS MiDo Circle, Supr Hill. GA 30518 

. In a letter I sent you on AprD. 2016, I asked again for information, andyou sent some 
iDlormatiou, but did notsend some ofthe requested infonnation. I have detailed the 
mI8siDg IDfonnatlon below. 

You still have not completely responded to the question below (especiallyyou have not 
provided the documents asked for), so·1 am asking for the rest of the information again: 

P!__ tBH me who are the dJjfenmtstII'ViCBTB, subservietn and masterIBrvicers, who 
CUJT8IItlY arB Involved with this loan andprYNide documtmtl showing theirauthorltcv 
and I"fI8P01UJIbllitia regardIntJ this loan andwhen their lnvoWemfimtstarted. 

f Please lfst an the charges that comprise the $9,999.99 charge mthe account history. the 
date ofthe charge and explaiD the reason for each of the charges. Also please l1st all the 
charges thatcomprise the $863.07 charge In the account history, the date ofthe charge and 
explain the reason for each ofthe charges. 

Please describe all ofthe attempts you have made to obtain the accouIIthistoryfor the time 
before January 16, 2007, and when you made each afthose attempts. 

You refused to send me a copy of the documents in the custodial tlle, even thoqh you, the 
serv1cerr took them from the custodial bank and have tbemm your possession. I am agafn 
reqUest:ingthat IDformatioJL . 

You have also refused to send me any documents showinawhen the current holder oftha 
note became the cummtholderoltha note. I am agam requesting that JuformaUon. 

I am asldng apin for the ~ofthe trust asreementthatyou sent the front page from, 
espaciaUy the part that shows whether my loan Is In that trust 

Please exp~what -utie cure costs" are and why they were charged to my account 

~ly, please sand me copies ofaD ofthe propert.yfnspect10D reports. 

Thankyou, 

.~~. 
Steve Bivens 
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July 28, 2016 

steve BiVens 
651 Simmons Mine Cbcfe 
Sugar HOI, GA 30518 

Account Number: 0013851765 
property Addteae: 651 Simmons Mine Circle 

Sugar HHI, GA 30518 

Dear Steve Bivens, 
...... _ - ,~'" .. "'" 

Select Portfolio servicingt Inc. (SPS); the mortgage eervicer on the above referenced account. bas 
receiVed your Inquiry dated June SO, 2016, which we received on Jane 30.2018. . 

The Issues prEtSented in your .... are part ofan ongoing litigation. SPS Is aware of the issues presented 
ID your letter and would like to work; with you to reach a. resoJutlon. Du. to the current litigation, SPS 
believes that It would be more ~ .to refrain from providing a d$taDed response to you at this 
tine. We encourage yot,l to c::ontinue working with our legal counsel to detennlne the available resotullcn 
options. 

We appreciate the opporwntty to address the Iss.ue(a) noted in your inquiry and consider this matter 
resolVed. Should YQu have any fUrther questions. please contact me toIf...ftae at 86'&.0878-5178. extension 
50256 betvteen the hours. of 8:00 a.m. and 0:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. Eastern Time. 

Sincerely, 

David Mawro 
C~Advoc!lte . 

Esta carla 'COdtJene.ir'it'oanad6n Important;; concemiente. a sus derechos. Porfavar( traduzea esla carta. 
Nueetros representantas billngQes est8n a au disp0sici6n para contestar cualquier ptegunta.·Ll8rriennos 

-., ritiri'lero ·8CJ0..831-0118 y~e /a opd6A 2 . 

THIS ~UNlCAT1ON FROM ADEBT COLLECTOR 18 AN..ATTEIIPTTO COLLECT ADEBT AND ANY tNFCIRMATION 
OBt'AINED WILL II! IJ8ED FOR1'MAT PURPOSE 

MINtI!!8oTA - THIS COLI.EC11ON AGENCY 1$ u;:J!NREJ BY THE_NESOTA DEPARl1IIEJf1'OF COMMERCE 

NEW YORK CIrv-Cou.EcnoN AsENcY I..lcENsE #1170514 
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Telmlnus 200, 3333 Piedmont Road NE. Suite 1200Locke Atlanta. GA 30305 
Telephone: 404-870-4600 

Fax: 4Q4.a72-5547 
www.lockelord.comLord~p. 

Alexandra M. Dishun 
Attorneys & Counselors Direct Telephone: 4()4..87().4605 

Direct Fax: 404-806-5678 
adishun@lockelord.com 

October 6, 2016 

lLlA UPS & U.S. MAlL 
Wayne Charles 
Wayne Charles, P.C. 
395 Highgrove Drive 
Fayetteville, GA 30215 

Re: 	 August 3, 2016 Correspondence from Steven Bivens to Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc., 
·SPS Account Number: 013651765 
Property Address: 651 Simmons Mine Circle, Sugar Hill, GA 30518 

Dear Mr. Charles, 

This letter is to' respond to correspondence dated August 3, 2016 that your client, Steven 
Bivens; sent to Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc. (SPS) (the "August 3 Letter"). That letter was 
received by SPS on August 3,2016 and was later forwarded to Locke Lord LLP for response. 
Mr. BI\(ens has filed litigation agalnstSPS, and you are his counsel of record in that litigation. 
For that reason, the August 3 Letter was sent to Locke Lord LLP and we are responding to you, 
rather than responding directly to Mr. Bivens. We have included a copy of this letter for you to 
forward to Mr. Bivens to ensure he receives a response to his correspondence. 

The A!Jgust 3 Letter is overly broad and unduly burdensome in that it, by reference to 
correspondence Mr. Bivens sent to SPS dated June 30, 2016 (the "June 30 Letter"), seeks 
information that is unrelated to servicing and requests information in a fashion similar to a set of 
interrogatories and document requests exchanged in litigation. Indeed, given that Mr. Bivens 
has commenced litigation against SPS related to the very subject of this correspondcfnce, we 
find his continuing correspondence with SPS, and this letter in particular, to be improper. The 
August 3 Letter is also dupfioative of prior correspondence Mr. Bivens has sent to SPS, to which 
SPS has already responded. Moreover, Mr. Bivens' loan was in default at the time the servicing 
rights t.ransferred to SPS and SPS has never received a scheduled periodic payment from Mr. 
Bivens: For these reaso~, SPS has no further obligation to respond to either the August 3 
Letter or the June 30 Lette . Nevertheless, because we desire to continue a dialogue between 
SPS a"d Mr. Bivens, we a responding to each of the issues raised in these letters below. . . 

1. .Mr. Bivens has asked for information regarding the identity and authority of the servicers, 
subservicers and master servicers currently involved with his loan. This request is duplicative of 
a request Mr. Bivens has presented to SPS in at least two prior letters. SPS responded in full to 
this Inquiry in its correspondence dated March 18, 2016 and has no further response. . 

Atlanla IAustin I Boston IChicago rCincinnati I Dallas IHat1ford IHong Kong IHouston I Istanbul I london I los Angeles IMiami 

Monistown I New Orleans I New.YOIk I Providence ISacramento ISan Francisco IStamford I Tokyo IWashington DC IWest Palm Beach 
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Wayne Charles 
August 29,2016 
Page~ 

2. In t,he August 3 Letter, by reference to the June 30 Letter, Mr. Bivens asks for a list of 
the individual charges that are aggregated into two line items in the amounts of $9999.99 and 
$863.07 that appear on the SPS account history for his loan. SPS previously explained, in 
correspondence dated June 2, 2016, that at the time Mr. Bivens' loan transferred to SPS for 
servicing, there was a total escrow arrearage of $10,863.06. These two charges represent that 
arrearage. That total sum comprises numerous account charges and credits made by the prior 
servicer, Bank of America, before December 1, 2012, when SPS began servicing the account. 
This request is duplicative and unduly burdensome, particularly since Mr. Bivens has presented 
no dispute with any charge to the account and these charges date back as far as 2009. long 
before ,SPS began 'servicing the account. Nevertheless, in the interest of cooperation, we can 
inform you that the Ban~ of America account records reflect that the $10,863.06 escrow 
arrearage comprises the following charges and credits: 

NATURE OF CHARGE AMOUNT OF 
CHARGE/CREDIT 

DATE OF CHARGE 

-$371.0010/0512009 Additional Insurance Payment 

·$2672.83·1010612009 County Tax Payment 

$0.0110113/2009 I Regular Payment (credit) 
, 

11/0612009 I
I 

County Tax Payment -$922.75 
! 

·11/1212009 Regular Payment (credit) $0.01 

12131/2009 Regular Payment (credit) $565.04 

0210212010 Regular Payment (credit) $565.04 
i 

;03/2912010 County Tax Payment -91.65! 
'08/1212010 I· County Tax Payment -$953.46 

I 

-$886.00.10/0412010 III Hazard Insurance Payment 

11/03/2010 i County Tax Payment -$953.47 
, 

08/03/2011 ! Hazard Insurance Payment -$958.00 
,i 

10/1312011 ! County Tax Payment -$1616.81 
! 

08/0312012' I Hazard Insurance Payment -$1352.40 
I 


09/1312012 I County Tax Payment 
 -$1214.79 

! TOTAL: -$10863.06
I 
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Wayne Charles 
August 29, 2016 
Page 3 

3. By reference to the June 30 Letter, Mr. Bivens requests a description of the attempts 
SPS has made to obtain the account history for the period before January 16, 2007. This 
request does not relate to servicing and is related to pending litigation; thus, this request Is 
Improper and no further response is required here. 

4. .Mr. Bivens is seeking a copy of the documents in the ·custodial file: by which SPS 
understands Mr. Bivens to be referring to a file of collateral documents maintained by U.S. 
Bank, N.A. SPS has previously addressed this same request in full. The new request is 
duplicative. The documents Mr. Bivens is requesting are, not related to servicing. AI you know, 
SPS obtained that file and thus came into possession of that file in the course of prior litigation, 
not In the ordinary course of servicing Mr. Bivens' loan. As a courtesy to you and to Mr. Bivens. 
it produced to you for Inspection the original Note from that file. Additional response to this 
req~ is not required. 

5. -Mr. Bivens Is seeking documents -showing when the current holder of the note became 
the current holder of the note- and a copy of the complete trust agreement. SPS has previously 
responded to these requests in several letters and in the course of discovery in prior litigation. 
No further response to this duplicative request is required here. 

6. 'Mr. Bivens has asked for an explanation of "what 'title cure costs' are and why they were 
charged- to his loan account. We assume Mr. Bivens is referring to a line item on the Financial 
Breakdown Statement SPS previously provided to Mr. Bivens with correspondence dated April 
8,2018, which reflects a December 11,2012 charge for $260.00 with a Transaction Description 
of ·PriOr Servicer- TITLE CURE COSTS.· That is a charge placed on the account by the prior 
servicer, Bank of America. SPS Is unable to identify the specific reason for that charge. SPS 
credited Mr. Bivens in full for that charge on April 16, 2015. That credit is also reflected on the 
Financial Breakdown Statement, with a Transaction Description of .,lTLE CURE COSTS.

7. ,Mr. Bivens has requested ·copies of all of the property Inspection reports." This request 
is overly broad and unduly burdensome and presenlled in the form of a discovery request 
Furthermore, the request seeks Infonnation that is unrelated to the servicing of Mr. Bivens' loan 
account. SPS conducts periodic property inspections for the benefit of the investor and the fees 
related, to such inspections have not been passed on to Mr. Bivens. 

Should you have any questions or concems, you lTlay contact me directly. All concems related 
to the pending litigation should be directed to Locke Lord LLP. Mr. Bivens may also contact the 
SPS Customer Service Department to discuss his account. The toll-free number is (800) 258
8602, and representatives are avallabJe Monday through Friday from 7 a.m. to 8 p.m., and 
Satu~y from 8 a.m. to 12 p.m. Eastern Time. Mr. Bivens may also visit the SPS website: 
www.spservicing.com or correspond by email atdirectcontact@spservicing.com. 

EncJ08tJre: Copy for Steven Bivens 
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